# MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL ON MONDAY, JUNE 16<sup>TH</sup> 1930 AT 8:00 P.M.

#### PRESENT:

His Worship Mayor Morden Alderman Anderson Alderman Bridgman Alderman Cartwright Alderman Loutet Alderman White Alderman Wilson

The Minutes of the Regular meeting of Council, held on Monday, June 2<sup>nd</sup> 1930, copies of which had previously been furnished to each member of the Council, were taken as read, and on motion of Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson adopted.

# Correspondence was received, read and dealt with as follows:

From Lillian M. Kellington, New Westminster, conveying thanks to Council for the expression of sympathy tendered at the time of passing of her husband – Ex-Alderman A. E. Kellington of New Westminster.

Received and filed.

From the Registrar, of the County Court, at Vancouver, being receipt for By-laws:

- 1211 "SIXTH STREET (LANE) EAST OF LONSDALE TO ST. DAVID'S) SANITARY SEWER INITIATIVE BY-LAW 1930"
- 1212 "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER HIGHWAYS DEDICATION BY-LAW NUMBER 1, 1930"

## Received and filed.

From W. G. Murrin, President B.C. Electric Railway Co. acknowledging receipt of Council's letter on the subject of One-Man Cars and expressing disappointment at the result of the hearing particularly inasmuch as service requirements similar to those existing in North Vancouver are being satisfactorily met throughout the United States and Canada with One-man Cars.

Received and filed.

From the Secretary to the Provincial Minister of Railways, acknowledging advice regarding what discussion is considered necessary for the spending of the \$25000.00 grant made by the Government. Also stating that if desired a meeting could be arranged between a representative Engineer from the Public Works Department and a Committee of the Council along with our Engineer.

The Department Engineer could then report to the Minister the result of the conference.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the communication be referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the Western Association for the Blind, requesting permission to sell tags in North Vancouver, on Saturday, 5<sup>th</sup> next (same day as in Vancouver).

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that permission to sell tags in the City and at the Ferry Approaches on the above mentioned date by the Western Association for the Blind, be and is hereby granted.

From Miss Muriel Marshall, 133 6<sup>th</sup> Street East, informing the Council that a City Truck – on Saturday, June 7<sup>th</sup> – driven by Mr. Ralph Barron, had run over and killed her thoroughbred Fox Terrier pup, coupled with a request that the Council take steps to replace her pet.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that beyond expressing regret that the accident happened, the Council does not see its way clear to take any further action in the matter.

From the City of Kamloops, reciting the following:

WHEREAS Section 9 of the Municipal Act Amendment Act 1930 re-enacts Subsections (2) and (3) of Section 212 of the Municipal Act.

AND WHEREAS the old subsection (3) in its last paragraph provided that the miles of single track of any railway company, and in the case of track upon privately owned rights-of-way, the land upon which such tracks are laid shall be assessed as the land at their value as a portion of a going concern.

AND WHEREAS the new subsection (3a) provides that the assessment of railway tracks <u>shall include</u> the assessment of the right-of-way upon which the tracks are laid.

Requesting endorsement of the following resolution in connection with Subsection (3a):

BE IT RESOLVED that the Provincial Government be and is hereby urged to approach the Railway companies with the object of obtaining from them an agreement that pending the amendment of the new section (3a) the companies will waive the matter and agree to the tracks being assessed as at present provided and allow the various municipalities to assess and tax the rights-of-way as they have done heretofore.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that failing an agreement as above the Government be and is hereby asked to arrange a Fall session of the Legislature or an early session in the year 1931 in order to amend the enactment before the various assessment rolls are confirmed.

And that copies of this resolution be forwarded for support and endorsement to the various municipalities affected by the enactment and to the Attorney-General, the Inspector of Municipalities, the President, the Parliamentary Agent and the Secretary of the Union of B. C. Municipalities, and Secretary of the Municipal Committee of the Legislature.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the Council endorse the principle of the resolution and refer same to the Solicitor to take up with the Parliamentary Agent for the U.B.C.M. The amendment asked for by the Union was never intended to take away the right of the Municipalities to assess in addition and separately any private right-of-way at its actual value of land.

From the Sanitary Inspector and the Medical Health Officer, reporting that from a health standpoint there are no grounds for complaint at the premises known as 173 3<sup>rd</sup> Street East, situated on Lots 22 and 23, Block 141, D.L. 274 and occupied as a woodyard. Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that a copy of the official's letter be forwarded to the complainant Mrs. E. J. Smith, and that she be further advised that if a nuisance is being committed the matter can be dealt with by laying an information in the ordinary way.

From the Engineer dealing with the cost of operating and maintaining a garbage and scavenging department in the City:

The total cost for 1929 being as follows:

| 2001101 1020 20111g 40 101 |           | 1         |
|----------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Teamster's salary          | \$1500.00 |           |
| Payroll (three men)        | 3554.54   | \$5054.54 |
| Feed                       | 780.00    |           |
| Blacksmith and repairs     | 89.96     | 869.96    |
| Total cost during 1929     |           | \$5924.50 |

The under noted statement of the work indicates a yearly increase:

| Year | Calls   | Loads | Cleaning/Ditches |
|------|---------|-------|------------------|
| 1925 | 34,008  | 1,191 | \$741.00         |
| 1926 | 43,876  | 1,335 | 683.87           |
| 1927 | 53,672  | 1,403 | 617.33           |
| 1928 | 92,123  | 1,433 | 374.00           |
| 1929 | 107,776 | 1,709 | 219.69           |

The report concluded by stating:

"I beg leave to state that in my opinion it is in the best interests of the City to keep the collection of garbage under the day labour system as at present organized, owing to the various demands made on the department by the general public from day to day, such as extra calls, extending the service, changing the locations of dumps from time to time, thereby verifying the length of haul. All these changing conditions would require continual extras on, or re-adjustments of, any contract.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the report of the Engineer be approved and the Council go on record as being opposed to any change in the present arrangements for the collection of garbage.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that in view of the Chesterfield Avenue dump being required for future use the Engineer be instructed to go into the matter of another suitable location for the dumping of City garbage and report his findings to the Council.

From the Engineer advising construction costs of new wooden sidewalks to replace those existing on Chesterfield Avenue, West side from Esplanade to Fourteenth Street four feet wide - \$1200.00.

St. George's Avenue, West side, Esplanade to Tenth Street, four feet wide - \$960.00. Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the communication be referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the City Clerk, Vancouver, enclosing for the information and necessary action of Council, copies of resolutions passed at a conference of Mayors and Reeves of Western Canada on Unemployment, held at Vancouver, on Monday, June 16<sup>th</sup> last.

RESOLVED that this Conference recommend to the respective Provincial Governments that they take immediate steps to give financial aid meantime to the Municipalities to enable them to cope with their unemployed situation according to their various needs and conditions, and that the Provincial Governments take the matter up with the Dominion Government at a Conference which the Prime Minister of Canada has promised to call:

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that each Province and Municipality requested to appoint a Committee to consider the matter before the holding of the Ottawa Conference; the delegates to meet in Ottawa a day or two before the Conference for the purpose of co-ordinating their work and preparing material to lay before the Conference.

BE FURTHER RESOLVED that each Municipality be requested to forward to its Provincial Government as early as possible a concise statement showing the amount expended by the Municipality in relief, specifying the period covered, the different kinds of work the nature with their separate amounts, and in the case of relief work the nature of the work.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the general principle of the resolutions be endorsed and His Worship the Mayor be and is hereby appointed a Committee of one to act in the matter – Any information required to be furnished to the proper authorities.

From the Clerk submitting Certificates in connection with the following works authorized to be proceeded with under the provisions of the "Local Improvement Act" upon the Initiative Plan.

# CONCRETE SIDEWALKS

Certifying that no objections had been received against undertaking any of the following:

South side of Fourth Street (Lonsdale to Lot 12/134/271)

South side of Fourth Street (Lot 12/134/271 to N.E. 1/4 Lot 3/135/271)

North side of Ninth Street (8<sup>th</sup> Street to Sutherland Avenue)

South side of Ninth Street (St. Andrew's to Ridgeway)

South side of Ninth Street (Queensbury to Sutherland)

South side of Thirteenth St. (St. Andrew's to Queensbury)

North side of Thirteenth St. (Mahon to Lonsdale)

South side of Fourteenth St. (Jones to Chesterfield)

South side of Fifteenth St. (Lonsdale to St. George's)

South side of Nineteenth St. (St. George's to St. Andrew's)

North side of 21<sup>st</sup> Street (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's)

East side of Bewicke Avenue (Larson Road to 18<sup>th</sup>)

One petition had been received against each of the following:

South side of Sixteenth St. (Chesterfield to Lot 1/41/547)

North side of Seventeenth St. (St. George's to St. Andrew's)

## **SANITARY SEWERS**

No objections had been received against undertaking any of the following:

Lane south of Sixth Street (Mahon to Chesterfield)

Eighteenth Street (Chesterfield to lane west of Lonsdale)

Mahon Avenue (15<sup>th</sup> to 17<sup>th</sup>)

One petition had been received against the following:

Fifth Street (Mahon to lane west of Lonsdale)

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Certificates be received and minuted.

The Clerk recommended that the Certificates covering

# **CONCRETE SIDEWALKS**

On the West side of Chesterfield Avenue (Esplanade to 14<sup>th</sup>)

And

On the West side of St. George's Avenue (Esplanade to 10<sup>th</sup>)

"Against which there were no objections"

And a

## SANITARY SEWER

On Seventeenth Street (Lonsdale to Ridgeway)

"Against which seven persons petitioned"

be referred for consideration with other matters pertaining thereto to Committee of the Whole.

From the Inspector of B.C. Municipalities in connection with the reduction made in the assessment of irregularly shaped lots with particular reference to the proposals to construct concrete sidewalks on:

West side of Chesterfield Avenue (Esplanade to 14<sup>th</sup>) West side of St. George's Avenue (Esplanade to 10<sup>th</sup>)

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the communication be referred to Committee of the Whole.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Mayor and Clerk be and are hereby authorized to sign and complete transfer form in connection with the redemption of 600 pounds C.N.R. 4% Debentures, guaranteed by the Province of Manitoba, due June 30<sup>th</sup>, 1930, and made up as follows: 100 pounds each: number 10196 and numbers 21608 to 21612 inclusive.

From the Engineer submitting a Local Improvement report covering the construction of a Concrete sidewalk, four feet wide, on the South side of 19<sup>th</sup> Street from the East side of Lonsdale Avenue to the West side of St. George's Avenue as a work of Local Improvement under the provisions of the "Local Improvement Act" upon the Initiative Plan.

| Length of Sidewalk   | 618 feet |
|----------------------|----------|
| City's Share of Cost | \$562.00 |
| Fronting Property    | 462.00   |
| Total Cost           | \$988.00 |

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the report be and is hereby adopted.

From the Engineer submitting a Local Improvement report covering the Opening of Third Street through Block 68, D.L. 271, 547, as a work of Local Improvement under the provisions of the "Local Improvement Act" upon the Initiative Plan.

| Length of Work           | 740.7 feet |
|--------------------------|------------|
| City's Share of Work 80% | \$3104.00  |
| Fronting Property 20%    | 776.00     |
|                          | \$3880.00  |

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the submission be referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the North Vancouver Land and Improvement Co. requesting that before they execute a conveyance of the land to the City in the Westerly portion of Block Z, D.L. 271, an undertaking be given that the area will be dedicated for the use of the public. From the Solicitor advising that the Council should concur in the application.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that an undertaking be given to the North Vancouver Land and Improvement Co. that the area of land to be acquired in Block Z as shown on a blue print attached to the conveyance will be dedicated by the City for highway purposes and that the necessary By-law be prepared and submitted to the Council.

From Mrs. H. Peck, 335 16<sup>th</sup> Street East, reporting a sidewalk accident that happened to her in the 700 Block 9<sup>th</sup> street East, on Wednesday, May 7<sup>th</sup> 1930.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that Mrs. Peck be notified that the accident according to the information given happened outside the City limits and that the sidewalk referred to is located in the District of North Vancouver.

From the Treasurer – Cash Statement for the month ended May 1930.

Receipts \$187,816.09 Expenditures \$177,228.05

Received and filed.

From the Treasurer submitting detailed statement covering outstanding in the Better Housing Loan Account.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that consideration be referred to Committee of the Whole.

From Helen Dalton, 445 16<sup>th</sup> Street East, applying for immediate improvements on 17<sup>th</sup> Street East over the ravine where the bridge used to be. The application states that the entire lack of through access for pedestrians going East and West is the cause of much inconvenience.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee and Engineer for report.

From the Solicitor with reference to the proposed sewer connection for Lots "A" and "B" in the resub of Lots 7 and 8, Block 135, D.L. 274, advising that the question of taxes under the sewer Local Improvement By-law is settled by section 40 of the "Local Improvement Act" which in the case under review states it shall be lawful for the Assessor upon the resolution of the council, on the written application of the person interested, or on the Council's own motion to apportion the taxes between the two lots and that sewage facilities on Fourth Street for lot "B" cannot be obtained without the consent of the owner of Lot "A" except by expropriating an easement for that purpose.

The Clerk reported that the owner of Lot "B" (Mrs. Kate M. H. Davies) had advised that there was no septic tank trouble on Lot "B" since the owners of Lot "A" (D. Lenihan Estate) had connected with the sewer on Fourth Street.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Clerk check up on the action, if any taken by Council at the time of the subdivision of Lots 7 and 8 into Lots "A" and "B" and the Sanitary Inspector report back to the Council on the sanitary conditions now prevailing on Lot "B".

## **ENQUIRIES**

The Clerk enquired if it was the wish of Council that the sum of \$150.00 tentatively set aside in the Estimates as a grant to the "On-to-the-Peace" Association be paid. Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the matter be laid on the table.

Alderman Wilson enquired why the elevation of a culvert being constructed in the first block on 14<sup>th</sup> Street East was being lowered towards the South side of the Street.

The Engineer explained that in conjunction with the grading being done in that block an adjustment in the slope of the culvert was necessary and he had instructed that more fall be made on the South side.

The Engineer estimated that the fall from North to South was probably three to four feet in every hundred and was necessary to conform with the slope of the ground.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Board of Works Committee and Engineer inspect the cuvert on the gournd along with any other member of the Council who may desire to attend.

#### TENDERS

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that tenders be opened.

Whereupon the following tenders were opened for Eleven pairs of Firemen's Boots.

| JAMES SMITH              |                 |
|--------------------------|-----------------|
| CHIEF OF POLICE BOOT     | \$6.40 per pair |
|                          |                 |
| J. BARKER                |                 |
| THE LECTONIA SHOE        | \$6.50 per pair |
| LECKIES "MARQUIS" SHOE   | \$7.85 per pair |
|                          |                 |
| FARQUHARSON'S SHOE STORE |                 |
| CHIEF OF POLICE BOOT     | \$6.60 per pair |

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the tenders along with the samples submitted be referred to the Fire Chief of tabulation and report later in the meeting.

## **DUE ACCOUNTS**

Reports and recommendations were submitted from the Chairmen of the Finance, Police, School, Ferry, Board of Works, Waterworks, Fire and Light, Health and Parks Committees on due accounts and the Treasurer was authorized to pay the accounts in the following amounts:

| Finance        | \$6570.88 |           |
|----------------|-----------|-----------|
|                | 939.65    | \$7510.53 |
| Police         |           | 1364.47   |
| School         |           | 489.15    |
| Ferry          | 7021.88   |           |
|                | 2136.98   |           |
|                | 5055.58   | 14214.44  |
| Board of Works | 5381.60   |           |
|                | 307.80    |           |
|                | 2487.48   | 8176.88   |
| Waterworks     | 462.26    |           |
|                | 1064.04   | 1526.30   |
| Health         | 852.56    |           |
|                | 564.56    | 1417.12   |
| Fire and Light |           | 6131.59   |
| Parks          | 415.08    |           |
|                | 435.39    | 850.47    |

## REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the following report of the FINANCE COMMITTEE be adopted:

RECOMMEND that a report in writing be obtained from the Chief of Police concerning Thomas L. Williams, an inmate of the Provincial Home for Incurables – continuously since August 1923 as a City expense.

RECOMMEND that the case of Mr. and Mrs. John Johnson, an aged couple, residing at 333 14<sup>th</sup> Street West, North Vancouver, be temporarily cared for pending correspondence with the members of their family and efforts to obtain for them the Old Age Pension.

RECOMMEND that the following Sinking Fund Securities be purchased from the Royal Financial Corporation Ltd:

\$500.00 CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 6% Bond, due April 15<sup>th</sup> 1945 at 106.06 to yield 5.50%

\$2000.00 CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 5% Bond, due October 15<sup>th</sup> 1939 at 98.52 to yield 5.20%

RECOMMEND that the understanding arrived at between the Clerk and Irwin and Billings Co. Ltd. agents for the owner of Lot 4, Block 9, D.L. 616 be confirmed on payment of the agreed upon amount of \$50.00 towards the arrears of water rates.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the following report of the FERRY COMMITTEE be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the supplementary report from the Ferry Superintendent together with attached report from D. R. Mathieson, Engineer on the boat, concerning the accident to Ferry No. 3 on June 1<sup>st</sup>, last be received and filed.

RECOMMEND that no further action be taken at the present time towards obtaining an eyesight test covering the captains and Mates on the City Ferries and that the Officers and crews be instructed to keep a sharp lookout for obstructions during the overhaul and reconstruction of the C.N.R. Dock.

RECOMMEND that the correspondence be diligently carried on with Mr. M. Murphy, 1466 6<sup>th</sup> Avenue, W. Vancouver, in regard to additional charges incurred and not paid for at the time of transportation of a caterpillar Gas Shovel on the City Ferries.

RECOMMEND that the recent sale of one Sirocco Vertical Steam Engine and 15 K.W. Generator to W. J. Iverson at the price of \$150.00 be comprised to the extent of \$35.00 on the total purchase price due to the unexplained disappearance of the brush holders belonging to the set before delivery was taken by the purchaser.

RECOMMEND that the summary of Coal Analysis submitted by the Superintendent for the December to June period of the Ferry Coal contract be received and filed. The percentages of analysis called for in the contract were fully met and in some cases exceeded.

From the First Baptist and St. John's Church, North Vancouver, applying for the use of the North Vancouver Ferry Landing Stage for the purpose of embarking and disembarking passengers on the occasion of the respective dates for their annual Church picnics.

RECOMMEND that the privilege be granted provided that the City is Indemnified against claims arising out of accidents by the deposit of a satisfactory liability policy.

RECOMMEND that the question of placing Marine Insurance covering damage howsoever caused, by the Ferries to the docks be left in the hands of the Ferry Committee with power to act.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the following report of the BOARD OF WORKS COMMITTEE be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the application of H. G. Milman, 512 10<sup>th</sup> Street East, be granted to have the lane graded at the rear of Lots 1 and 2, Block 91, D.L. 550, and a culvert placed in the ditch on Moody Avenue opposite the entrance to the lane at an estimated cost of \$30.00.

RECOMMEND that the application of M. Gavey, 503 12<sup>th</sup> Street East, be granted to have a four foot wooden sidewalk extended on the East side of Moody Avenue from opposite Lot 20, Block 81, to opposite new house on Lot 1, Block 81, a length of 120 feet at an estimated cost \$35.00.

RECOMMEND that the application of A. R. Harvey, 445 21<sup>st</sup> Street East, be granted to have Moody Avenue between 19<sup>th</sup> and 21<sup>st</sup> Streets graded with the grader in its turn after the present programme has been carried out, and that Mr. Harvey be notified that if he improves the boulevard opposite his property that the City will take away the boulders removed in making said improvements.

RECOMMEND that the application of L. G. Golman, 26<sup>th</sup> Street East, be granted to have a three plank walk constructed on the North side of 26<sup>th</sup> Street from the end of the present walk West of St. Andrew's Avenue to St. George's Avenue and on the East side of St. George's Avenue from 26<sup>th</sup> Street to 27<sup>th</sup> Street at an estimated cost of \$200.00. This will accommodate about one dozen houses and the children going along St. George's Avenue to the High School.

RECOMMEND that after hearing Mr. Gray and other residents concerning street conditions obtaining in the 300 Block 26<sup>th</sup> Street East, that the Engineer be given power to act in the matter of constructing a wooden sidewalk from 26<sup>th</sup> to 27<sup>th</sup> Streets on the East side of St. Andrew's Avenue and to provide a turning place for automobiles at the East end of the Block, and that the conditions of the Street and necessary repairs be reported on at the next meeting of Council.

RECOMMEND that the Engineer submit a report covering the use of creosoted stringers for wooden sidewalks, showing the difference in cost between lumber so treated and the class of untreated lumber that is now being used.

RECOMMEND that the Engineer prepare quantities of the lumber to be used by the City between now and September next and submit same to Council together with delivered prices obtained from the local yards.

RECOMMEND that a serious effort be made in placing street direction posts of the newer type without arms from the Eastern to the Western boundary of Third Street, Low Level Road and Esplanade and that repairs be affected to the street signs of the cross-arm type throughout the City without further delay. Local carpenters to be employed if necessary.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the following report of the FIRE AND LIGHT COMMITTEE be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the annual inspection of the City Firemen take place at the Fire Hall on Friday, June 20<sup>th</sup> at 7:15 P.M. to be followed by a demonstration of the new 600 gallon La France Fire Pump at the corner of 28<sup>th</sup> Street and Lonsdale.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the following report of the PARKS COMMITTEE be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the following improvements be carried out:

- (1) That the children's slide at Mahon Park be lined with metal as the hardwood is getting worn and the danger from slivers is increasing from day to day.
- (2) That the handrails be planed and otherwise put in good shape in order to prevent any danger to children.
- (3) That the seesaws be filled and painted and if the lower surface is better, turned over.
- (4) That the swings be examined and defective bolts and worn rings replaced where necessary.
- (5) That the sand box be filled.

## **NEW BUSINESS**

Alderman Cartwright drew attention to a near accident to himself and party of four riding in his car on Sunday, June 15<sup>th</sup> last. About 3 P.M. they were proceeding in an easterly direction along with a large number of other cars to the North Vancouver Cemetery to pay tribute to the memory of War Veterans at the Decoration Day Services to be held at the returned soldier's plot.

At the junction of the Third Street Hill and Low Level Road a number of cars that were proceeding west and stopped to let the procession pass when one of the Pacific Stages travelling towards North Vancouver, without warning, came through the two lines of traffic forcing the car of Alderman Cartwright and party on to the sidewalk to avert what might have been a serious accident.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the circumstances of the case be laid before the Pacific Stages Ltd. and the attention of the Chief of Police drawn to the matter and further attention of the Board of Police Commissioners drawn to the urgent need of a Constable being detailed as points man at this street intersection.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the Street lines at the intersection be painted designating thereon a crossing from the Third Street Hill to the South side of the Low Level Road.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Board of Police Commissioners be requested to look carefully into traffic congestion at this point and that serious consideration be given to the advisability of changing the beats of policemen on Saturday afternoons and Sundays, during the summer months, from points now being patrolled on which traffic is admittedly light to patrol this Street intersection at which traffic is undoubtedly heavy and dangerous unless carefully regulated.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the street and railway crossing at First Street and St. George's Avenue be repaired, the Engineer to discuss with and arrive at a satisfactory agreement with the B.C. Electric Railway regarding its proportion of the cost of the work.

## **BY-LAWS**

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "FOURTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO LOT 12/134/271) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "FOURTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO LOT 12/134/271) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the by-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "FOURTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO LOT 12/134/271) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "FOURTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO LOT 12/134/271) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "FOURTH STREET – SOUTH (LOT 12/134/271 TO N.E. ¼ LOT 3/135/271) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "FOURTH STREET – SOUTH (LOT 12/134/271 TO N.E. ¼ LOT 3/135/271) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "FOURTH STREET – SOUTH (LOT 12/134/271 TO N.E. ¼ LOT 3/135/271) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the By-law entitled "FOURTH STREET – SOUTH (LOT 12/134/271 TO N.E. ¼ LOT 3/135/271) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "NINTH STREET – NORTH (EIGHT TO SUTHERLAND) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "NINTH STREET – NORTH (EIGHT TO SUTHERLAND) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "NINTH STREET – NORTH (EIGHT TO SUTHERLAND) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "NINTH STREET – NORTH (EIGHT TO SUTHERLAND) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "NINTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. ANDREW'S TO RIDGEWAY) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "NINTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. ANDREW'S TO RIDGEWAY) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "NINTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. ANDREW'S TO RIDGEWAY) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "NINTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. ANDREW'S TO RIDGEWAY) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "NINTH STREET – SOUTH (QUEENSBURY TO SUTHERLAND) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "NINTH STREET – SOUTH (QUEENSBURY TO SUTHERLAND) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "NINTH STREET – SOUTH (QUEENSBURY TO SUTHERLAND) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "NINTH STREET – SOUTH (QUEENSBURY TO SUTHERLAND) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "THIRTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. ANDREW'S TO QUEENSBURY) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "THIRTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. ANDREW'S TO QUEENSBURY) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "THIRTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. ANDREW'S TO QUEENSBURY) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "THIRTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. ANDREW'S TO QUEENSBURY) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "THIRTEENTH STREET – NORTH (MAHON TO LONSDALE) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, Seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the By-law entitled "THIRTEENTH STREET – NORTH (MAHON TO LONSDALE) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "THIRTEENTH STREET – NORTH (MAHON TO LONSDALE) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "THIRTEENTH STREET – NORTH (MAHON TO LONSDALE) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "FOURTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (JONES TO CHESTERFIELD) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the By-law entitled "FOURTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (JONES TO CHESTERFIELD) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "FOURTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (JONES TO CHESTERFIELD) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "FOURTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (JONES TO CHESTERFIELD) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "FIFTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO ST. GEORGE'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "FIFTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO ST. GEORGE'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "FIFTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO ST. GEORGE'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "FIFTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO ST. GEORGE'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "SIXTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (CHESTERFIELD TO LOT 1/41/547) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the By-law entitled "SIXTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (CHESTERFIELD TO LOT 1/41/547) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "SIXTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (CHESTERFIELD TO LOT 1/41/547) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "SIXTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (CHESTERFIELD TO LOT 1/41/547) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "SEVENTEENTH STREET – NORTH (ST. GEORGE'S TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "SEVENTEENTH STREET – NORTH (ST. GEORGE'S TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BYLAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "SEVENTEENTH STREET – NORTH (ST. GEORGE'S TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the By-law entitled "SEVENTEENTH STREET – NORTH (ST. GEORGE'S TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "NINETEENTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. GEORGE'S TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law

receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "NINETEENTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. GEORGE'S TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "NINETEENTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. GEORGE'S TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "NINETEENTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. GEORGE'S TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "TWENTY-FIRST STREET – NORTH (LONSDALE TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "TWENTY-FIRST STREET – NORTH (LONSDALE TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "TWENTY-FIRST STREET – NORTH (LONSDALE TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the By-law entitled "TWENTY-FIRST STREET – NORTH (LONSDALE TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "BEWICKE AVENUE – EAST (LARSON TO 18<sup>TH</sup>) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "BEWICKE AVENUE – EAST (LARSON TO 18<sup>TH</sup>) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time. Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "BEWICKE AVENUE – EAST (LARSON TO 18<sup>TH</sup>) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "BEWICKE AVENUE – EAST (LARSON TO 18<sup>TH</sup>) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "LANE SOUTH OF SIXTH STREET (MAHON TO CHESTERFIELD) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "LANE SOUTH OF SIXTH STREET (MAHON TO CHESTERFIELD) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "LANE SOUTH OF SIXTH STREET (MAHON TO CHESTERFIELD) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "LANE SOUTH OF SIXTH STREET (MAHON TO CHESTERFIELD) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "FIFTH STREET (MAHON TO LANE WEST OF LONSDALE) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the By-law entitled "FIFTH STREET (MAHON TO LANE WEST OF LONSDALE) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "FIFTH STREET (MAHON TO LANE WEST OF LONSDALE) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "FIFTH STREET (MAHON TO LANE WEST OF LONSDALE) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "EIGHTEENTH STREET (CHESTERFIELD TO LANE WEST OF LONSDALE) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the By-law entitled "EIGHTEENTH STREET (CHESTERFIELD TO LANE WEST OF LONSDALE) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "EIGHTEENTH STREET (CHESTERFIELD TO LANE WEST OF LONSDALE) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the By-law entitled "EIGHTEENTH STREET (CHESTERFIELD TO LANE WEST OF LONSDALE) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "MAHON AVENUE (15<sup>TH</sup> TO 17<sup>TH</sup>) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "MAHON AVENUE (15<sup>TH</sup> TO 17<sup>TH</sup>) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "MAHON AVENUE (15<sup>TH</sup> TO 17<sup>TH</sup>) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "MAHON AVENUE (15<sup>TH</sup> TO 17<sup>TH</sup>) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "NINETEENTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO ST. GEORGE'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK INITIATIVE BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the By-law entitled "NINETEENTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO ST. GEORGE'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK INITIATIVE BY-LAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "NINETEENTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO ST. GEORGE'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK INITIATIVE BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "NINETEENTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO ST. GEORGE'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK INITIATIVE BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1930, NUMBER 11" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the By-law entitled "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1930, NUMBER 11" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1930, NUMBER 11" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1930, NUMBER 11" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Voting for: Mayor Morden,

Alderman Anderson, Alderman Bridgman, Alderman Cartwright, Alderman Loutet, Alderman White and Alderman

Wilson.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the By-law entitled "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1930, NUMBER 9" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk, and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1213.

Voting for: Mayor Morden,

Alderman Anderson, Alderman Bridgman, Alderman Cartwright, Alderman Loutet, Alderman White and Alderman

Wilson.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1930, NUMBER 10" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk, and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1214.

Voting for: Mayor Morden,

Alderman Anderson, Alderman Bridgman, Alderman Cartwright, Alderman Loutet, Alderman White and Alderman

Wilson.

## <u>UNFINISHED BUSINESS</u>

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the report of the Fire Branch of the B.C. Underwriters Association be referred to the Fire Chief for report and recommendation.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that this Committee do now resolve itself into Committee of the Whole.

Alderman Loutet was appointed Chairman.

# IN COMMITTEE

## IN COUNCIL

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the foregoing report of the Committee of the Whole be adopted.

The Fire Chief reported that he had examined the tenders for shoes together with the samples submitted and recommended that the business be awarded to the lowest tender James Smith, 1515 Lonsdale "Chief of Police Boots" at \$6.40 per pair.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the recommendation of the Fire Chief be adopted and the contract to supply eleven pairs of "Chief of Police Boots" for the City Firemen be and is hereby awarded to James Smith, 1515 Lonsdale Avenue at the price of \$6.40 per pair.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council, a By-law entitled "SIXTH STREET SANITARY SEWER (LANE EAST OF LONSDALE AVENUE TO ST. DAVID'S AVENUE) LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "SIXTH STREET SANITARY SEWER (LANE EAST OF LONSDALE AVENUE TO ST. DAVID'S AVENUE) LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BYLAW 1930" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee Proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "SIXTH STREET SANITARY SEWER (LANE EAST OF LONSDALE AVENUE TO ST. DAVID'S AVENUE) LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "SIXTH STREET SANITARY SEWER (LANE EAST OF LONSDALE AVENUE TO ST. DAVID'S AVENUE) LOCAL IMPROVEMENT CONSTRUCTION BY-LAW 1930" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that tenders be called for the construction of 70,000 square feet more or less, of concrete sidewalks throughout the City, the locations of the various works being approved by the Council and determined by the Clerk's Certificates.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, that the Engineer report on the progress made to complete the necessary plans and specifications to permit the calling of tenders on Sanitary Sewers already authorized, together with the advantages or otherwise of placing a second and a separate sewer gang on a day labour basis in order to expedite construction during the summer months.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the purchase of new tires for the G.M.C. Truck be referred to the Board of Works Committee with power to act – with a recommendation that it be definitely determined if the useful life of the truck warrants the expenditure.

His Worship the Mayor advised that he would be absent from the City for a period of three weeks commencing July 2<sup>nd</sup> next. As the regular meeting would not be held until Monday, July 7<sup>th</sup> he would appreciate the action of the Council in appointing an acting Mayor during his absence from the City.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that Alderman E. H. Bridgman be and is hereby appointed Acting-Mayor of the City during the absence of Mayor G. H. Morden.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that this meeting of Council do now adjourn.

Whereupon the meeting adjourned at 11:45 P.M.

E. H. Bridgman
ACTING-MAYOR